CANADA TREE 

Volume 9, Issue 1
Fall 2001

[image: image1.png]


Margaret L. Clarke, Editor   # 304, 49 Greig Drive, Red Deer, AB  Email: mollyclendon@home.com
[image: image2.wmf]
[image: image3.png]



[image: image4.wmf]
Inside This Issue

1
Editor’s Comments

1
Pambrun & Cook in Red River Settlement ca 1843

3
FINDING THE WILLIAMS/PAMBRUN FAMILY

5
Metis Queries

6
Correspondence: Oman query






























Greetings


Jottings from the Editor


Welcome to the fifth edition of Canada Tree to go out with the Rupert’s Land Newsletter.  Canada Tree has been publishing since September 1993.  Back copies are available.  Many of the back editions are available for download from the Canada Tree web page at � HYPERLINK "http://users.rttinc.com/~canadatree" ��http://users.rttinc.com/~canadatree�


Editor’s Comments


Why we do this: an editorial





This issue contains stories of people and families researching their families' backgrounds, for very different reasons.  George McKinney searched on behalf of his stepchildren, to discover their family background, lost with the death of their father. Others are searching to confirm oral family history.  Some of us, the editor included, entered this arena in the process of retaking ethnic backgrounds relinquished by previous generations and searching for meaning in our individual family sagas.


There may be as many reasons for undertaking fur trade family research as there are researchers, but the editor has encountered enough researchers asking the same questions to begin to see patterns, perhaps a leaning toward certain reasons predominating.  Many of us are returning to previously discarded ethnic identities.  People are admitting connections to more varied backgrounds of all sorts, as the dominant society appears more open to multi-ethnic origins. North American Society facing a growing pluralistic population has loosened its definition of normal from its ideal of WASP to acceptance of multi-ethnic background.  However, this does not mean that we can look forward to a lessening of racial prejudice or neo-colonial policies.  More probably, it is becoming acceptable to claim a distant connection to a non-European background, for the cache, the glamour, while those with a lifestyle and identity forged by a personal identification as a member of a minority group will still face alienation and prejudice.


Multi-ethnic individuals are forming associations and advocacy groups to support their right to be accepted as multi-ethnic and not having to chose one ethnicity over the others, or having that choice forced on them.  One such group appears on the Web as The Multiracial Activist, at � HYPERLINK "http://www.multiracial.com" ��http://www.multiracial.com�.  The editor's interest in them derives partially from the difference their existence highlights, the difference between Canadian and American ways of defining ethnicity.  America has what is known as the "one-drop" rule, which stated in a less extreme form, is the idea that an individual's ethnicity is taken from the non-white portion of their background.  The 21st century result is that multi-ethnic individuals are arbitrarily placed in categories which may not agree with their self-identity.  Someone who has grand-parents of European, Chinese, Native American and Afro-American backgrounds would find themselves identified as Afro-American, even if they identify more strongly with their Chinese background, for instance.


In Canada, the history of the Metis people demonstrates the ideal of self-identification.  The Metis people developed in contexts where formal controls by colonial governments were not in place.  This left room for the development of indigenous solutions to local situations.  Among the solutions was the distillation of Metis society from the amalgamation of Native and European lifeways.  There was a mediated fluidity in how individuals and families found their places between the Aboriginal communities and the European settlements.  The 21st century result of this for that same multi-ethnic individual is more opportunity for personal self-identity but problems with acceptance into the specific ethnic groups.  That individual might find easiest acceptance in Metis or non-status Native groups, as well as in the general population.


In the end, those of us rediscovering our backgrounds should proceed thoughtfully when applying our discoveries to our lives.  We are the sum of all our ancestors living in the context of today's society.  We should be mindful of the messages about our identity from our families and our communities.  We should take any decision to change our ethnic identity only after long and serious thought.  �








 


Pambrun & Cook in Red River Settlement ca 1843








This story begins with a query from a reader in California in December, 2000.





"Hi, George McKinney here. Your e-mail address was given to me by the Centre for Rupert's land as a possible source for information on who was there in 1843.


 


I am attempting to find out who a Maria ( Mary ) Cook & her family was? She married my children's Gr. Gr. Gr. Gr. Grandfather, Andre Dominique Pambrun there in 1843. There seems to be confusion on who she was the child of? One side say's it was one of the teachers there at the time, a colleague of Andre who was also teaching there. Others say she was the daughter of a Jerome Cook.


 


Andre, who analyzed his name to Andrew Dominic Pambrun, wrote a book about his ' adventures ' in the Pacific Northwest. In his book there is a picture of his wife, Mary. If you look at the picture, she appears to be part " Indian "?, as was his mother, whose picture is also in the book.


 


Andre was the son of Pierre Chrysologue Pambrun, the Chief Trader at Ft. Walla Walla (Ft. Nez Perce ) from 1838 to 1841. 


 


Any help you might be able to give as to where I might find this information, would be greatly appreciated!


 


Thank you,


George McKinney"





I answered him with a guess that he was looking at a descendant of William Hemmings Cook, and as I had written about them in a previous newsletter, I sent him text versions of those articles.  I also suggested that he explore the HBC archives web page and find out about accessing the Red River Census on microfilm.





"George E. McKinney" wrote:


 


 Hi Ms. Clarke, you just hit the nail on the head!


 Yes, Andre was sent to the Red River Settlement for schooling at about 9 years of age, 1831. He spent 6 years in school, then taught for about 6 years. He met and married Maria Cook there and they married. If you look at the Genealogical posting of Gail Morin, Maria was born about 1822 in or near Red River Settlement!?!


 


 According to Andre's book, she stayed there while he went back and forth to Ft.'s Vancouver and Walla Walla and all points in between! She had 3 children while he was gone, Ellen, 1844; Peter C., 1845; James Lumsden, 1848. They then moved to what is now BC, then to Ft. Walla Walla in about 1851. The third child is said to be named after one of Andre's teachers, James Lumsden. Mr. Lumsden is in the 1843 ( I think that's the right year? ) Census of HBC Settlement of Red River.  . . .





 You now know as much as I, about Maria! Well not quite. Mary ( as she is listed with the Family and Andre's book ) died in 1912 in Oregon. She was living with her son Samuel in the 1900 Census of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, Pendleton, Oregon, listed age as 75, born Aug. 1824.  Now you know all that I know about her!!


 


George McKinney





I answered George McKinney back asking "for more information on Marie (Mary) Cook?  Year and place  of birth would be helpful. I take from your information given, that she married Andre Pambrun in 1843 - in Red River?  And that he served in the Pacific North West?  Please correct me if I have misunderstood."





He wrote back:





Thank you! I would be willing to bet you the farm, that your Cook Family is the right one! Reasons:


1. Andre was born at Cumberland House in 1823, or 1822. It depends on wither you believe what he wrote in his book ( which he started when he was 70 ! ) or the HBC records. His father Pierre was employed there by HBC.


2. Pierre Chrysologue Pambrun was married to Catherine Humpherville, a daughter of Thomas Humpherville and a " Country Woman ". Thomas' last name is actually " Umpherville ". I think I got the spelling correct on that?


3. Pambrun started out with HBC at Ft. York. Also married Catherine there!


4. All the Families you mention were at one time or another with Pierre on his journey west to Ft. Walla Walla.


5. Ms. Morin might not be real accurate ( she isn't ), but she lists Maria's parents as Jeremiah Cook and Eleanor Spence!  I don't know where she obtained that info?


6. If you look at the naming practices of the time, almost all of Andre's kids were named after someone in the Cook & Pambrun families. With the exception of Lumsden?


 


And lastly . . . the picture of Maria is definitely that of a part " Indian " woman! According to your article, Jeremiah was the son of a HB woman, which would be why Maria would look " part Indian "?


 


George McKinney





He next wrote me about how he was proceeding with the research on other fronts.





Thank you for the info on HBCA. When I tried to find out about my Grandfather, I wrote to HBC and they sent me a list of all the "Trading Post " Managers in area of Alberta. Of course, he was not a Manager, it was just another one of his tales!! However, I did find that he was VERY well know in the area and was called the Unofficial Mayor of Peace River!


 


I have an e-mail to HBCA on how I can get info down to here! Our local Library does not have ' inter-library ' loan? They also have, for a fee, people who will look up info for you! If they can't tell me who, in my area, has ' loan ' capacity, I asked if they would look it up and I will be happy to pay!


 


Do you have any info on Jeremiah Cook? A.D. & Maria named their 4th son Jeremiah ( called him Jerry ). They named their 1st daughter Ellen which could be after Eleanor, Jeremiah's wife? I know thats a stretch


 


He concluded with the story of his research and why it was so important to him. 
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FINDING THE WILLIAMS/PAMBRUN FAMILY





By George McKinney


 


I have been working on my wife's and my family for the past 5 years, and got them put together back to the original immigrant ancestor. Our children had been watching this and asked if I could find out about the " Indian " connection of their deceased father. Their blood father, Richard F. Williams, was killed in an auto accident in 1967. The Williams family had never been close, as the father Bernal Williams, divorced the mother of the oldest three children when they were young, and did not have much contact with these children. The kids did not know anything about the Williams Family history because of the acrimonious family history, and had only met the Grandfather several times. It should be noted our kids are in their late 30's and early 40's. Also, because of the long time since her first husbands death, my wife did not remember much about this side of the family. Since the kids expressed a sincere desire to learn about their fathers family, I said lets do it!


 


The 5 of us sat down together and started to list what was known about the family. We knew the Grandfather had died in 1974 at the home of his step daughter. We knew the mother had died in 1979, and the second wife died about 1968. We knew there were 3 brothers and sisters, but only knew there ' nick ' names, not their given names. We knew the Grandfather had been born on an Indian reservation in Oregon, but not which one. The step daughter lived in the same general area as we did, so we called her.


Imagine our surprise when we called and found she had died several years ago!! Her husband did not know much about the family, but did know where the Grandfather was born and where he was buired. Since his wife had been the daughter of Bernal's second wife, she had not known anything about the other siblings. With this information, I had enough to start the search.


 


The first thing I did was check my C/D's from Family Tree Maker. When I found the Grandfathers name, in the Social Security Death Index, it showed he was buried in Pendleton, Oregon. I tried to find the kids father, but it was not listed. My wife started toremember more about " Dicky ", and remembered he was named by the Doctor when born, and was not named by the mother until after the Doctor filed the birth certificate. We went through a bunch of his old military records and found the listed name, James Hill Williams! Even though he had gone to Court in Shasta County ( where they were living at the time ) to have the certificate changed, it didn't get changed! He was listed in the Death Index under James Hill Williams. I also checked the Family Finder C/D's, but no one was listed under the names we knew.


 


I next went on line and went to the Umatilla County GenWeb page. Pendleton is in Umatilla County Oregon. Searching around the web site, I found a listing for the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation that had contact information e-mail address's. I sent an e-mail to them requesting information on wither or not Williams was listed with them. After about 7 days with no response, I went back to the web site and got a telephone number. When I called, I was informed the person that handled the info I requested was off. After explaining to the nice lady what I wanted and why, she said she would mail me any info she could. 


 


While waiting for a response, I contacted several Cemetery's in the Pendleton area by phone. On the third call I hit pay dirt!!! Yes they said, not only was Bernal buired there, but so was his second wife, two sisters, and his mother and father. They said they would make photo copies of the ' burial records ' they had and send them to me. They gave me the parent info over the phone. I then went back to Umatilla County Web Site and searched it for the names I was given. Again, I hit pay dirt!! Bernal's mothers family, the Pambrun's, were listed. I also found a person ( at the web site ) that did ' look ups ' for the area on death, marriage & birth records.


Of course I e-mailed her, gave her the info I had, and requested she check to see if there was anything in her books on the family. I also found at the web site, information on the Pambrun Family in Ft. Walla Walla, and a connection to the National Park Service at Ft. Vancouver.


 


I contacted the ' web administrator ', vie e-mail, and asked if they had any information on either the Williams or Pambrun family. Later that same day, I received an e-mail reply from a park service worker stating " yes we do have information on the Pambrun Family, not only that, I play the part of his daughter Maria Barclay in a skit we put on here! ". She informed me she would put together a package of information they had on the family, and if I would give her my address, she would mail it to me. She did advise me they had no information on the Williams family


 


I now had several people sending me information, but nothing to put down in writing! With the information that I had, I went to our local LDS-Family History Center and started checking Census Index's for Washington and Oregon Territories. I found the Pambrun Families from 1860 to 1920! I then checked for the Williams Family in Oregon. I found my children's Gr. Grandfather and his family in the 1910 Census. With this information I started checking further back in the Census's and found their Gr. Gr. Grandfather as far back as 1860! The Gr. Gr. Grandfather, Joseph Williams, was born in Ireland and immigrated to the US in the 1850's. He married in 1867, in Douglas County Oregon. The Gr. Grandfather William W. ( Billy ) Williams was born in Oregon in 1868. He married Hattie Pambrun in 1899 in Pendleton Oregon. The Grandfather Bernal I. Williams was born in 1908 and married Yvette Hill in 1927. My children's father Richard F. Williams was born in Sacramento in 1930. I am now attempting to find the Gr. Grandfathers brothers and sisters, but have now hit a brick wall!! But with the luck I have had on the rest of the family, I will not complain about a few months set back!!!


 


By the next week, I received all the information that was promised! Not only did I have an out-line of the Family Tree for Pambrun's, I found that Andrew Dominic Pambrun had written a book about his years in the Pacific Northwest, a copy of which I now have!


I would like to say that I have had trouble finding information on this Family, but can not! The basic Family Tree has been done on the Pambrun's, now it is just a matter confirming that information! There are a few holes. Like the family of Andrew's wife, the Cook's of the Red River Settlement; the actual mother of Catherine Humpherville Pambrun, Andrew's mother, and the like. However, the Williams family has never been done!


 


At this point I should say everyone I contacted over the internet was very nice! They supplied information if they had any. If not, they would direct me to someone else who might. One of the people even went so far as to look up the Pambrun name where they lived. She found a name and address and sent it to me. When I contacted the person, sure enough he was a Cousin of my kids. He has sent us pictures of the Grandmother when she was 15. Pictures of the whole Williams Family, taken in 1920.  


 


I don't know wither or not anyone will read this, but if they do the one thing to take away from it is " never go by something without turning it over!! ". I put forth the Census' of the US as an example. All the Pambrun's born before 1854 showed they were born in the US some where! They never stated they were born in Canada. And why you ask? They never filed for naturalization! They were here before the US took possession of the Northwest Territories. They were here when the US did, so felt they were CITIZENS!!! But since they were all part " Indian ", they would have been ' kicked out ' if the US Government knew they were from Canada.


 


Without the help of people like Margaret Clarke, I would still be looking for information on the family.





Merry Christmas,


George McKinney


ftgeorge@pacbell.net
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Metis Queries





From: 


Gloria Williams





Hello Margaret, 


I hope I have reached the right person.  I have read every issue of your Canada tree newsletter, but note that it stopped in 1996, and  the email address listed on the page is defunct.  I wanted to send a subscription request, but am wondering whether the newletter is still being published.  





The Editor apologizes for the Web-page.  Issues of the Newsletter published together with the Rupert's Land Newsletter do not appear there.  The Editor hopes to have a new updated webpage in the new year, complete with a forward from the old page.


 


I was browsing on the topic of Donald McKay and was directed to a rootweb email thread about him which included  emails from you and I recognized your name, so thought I would take a chance and send you an email. 


 


My interest is in one particular thing.  I am researching my family history which is the Auger/Auge line  (but not I think the Antoine Auger line. That is mostly centered in northern Alberta)  I am particularly interested in Joseph Auger who was in charge an NWC fort in 1793 which was in opposition to Donald Mckay's at Brandon House, on the Assiniboine river.  Auger's fort which was called Riviere la souris,  or Assinboine house, or Macdonnell house, as various times.       


My particular research at the moment is around the fact that Donald McKay apparently attempted to shoot at Auger, and Auger had John MacDonnell come up to take affidavits from 5 people and Macdonnell said there was sufficient evidence to charge McKay and they took him away but then decided to let him go.  


This is according to Macdonnell's journal from the 1793-95 time period, which are on line,  and from the book  the Assiniboine Basin by Martin Kavenagh, published in 1946 which has a lot of good information about the early forts in the area.  I imagine you have read this book.  


 


So I am looking now for any writings about this incident.  Auger or "Old Auge" as he was referred to by MacDonnell, could not write , so there is nothing from him, although he had "old Robert Taylor" assigned to him to do his books and writing etc, but I don't know where those records might be.   


 


So, I am wondering if there is anything in your McKay files about this incident, and failing that, do you have anything in your files about Joseph or Pierre Auger or Auge.  (Pierre was in the Upper Red river with the NWC in 1799, I am wondering if he might be Joseph's son).    My family of Augers eventually ended up in Iowa and changed their name to Archer to avoid the French and Indian connection but the Indian features and colour are still there among the descendants.   I am trying to bridge that gap back to the Canadian fur trader Auger who married a Cree woman.  (no name unfortunately)


 


Any information would be appreciated. 


 Gloria





 Links to Documents mentioned.


In her next message, Gloria sent a link to the Masson papers, "including John Macdonell's  journal (1793-95) for his time in the Brandon area at the site below.   Also his journals for 1797 are here, and a 41 page list of names of men working for NWC in 1805 in the Athabasca region..  


 < http://207.253.40.18/toolbar_1.htm>





The book " The Assiniboine Basin, a social study of discovery, exploration and settlement"  by Martin Kavanagh  1946.   (he lived in Brandon, Manitoba at that time.)  is available here in the Victoria, BC library so you could probably get it on inter-library loan if it isn't available where you are. 





Thanks for the tips.  I have sent an email to the St. Boniface person [William Benoit] and I can get the Donald Mckay article from the local library I think ( I believe they have copies of the Beaver magazine)  Can you tell me where I could get access to the Brandon journals?


 


Thanks again keep up the good work. I will send in my subscription. 


 


Gloria Williams


Victoria, BC





The Editor advises that the Brandon Journals are available on microfilm  through inter-library loan from The Hudson's Bay Archives in the Province of Manitoba Archives. <http://www.gov.mb.ca/chc/archives/hbca/index.html>





Short Queries:


Robert Logan:


From:                   Littelowl@cs.com


Date sent:              Thu, 25 Jan 2001 17:29:11 EST


Subject:                Robert Logan Sr & Jr





Looking for information about our ancester Robert Logan and his Ojibwe wife.  We do not have E-mail or computer at Home. We are using a relative's system. e-mail  littelowl@cs.com cotact Karen Swanson 509-767-4219  8315 hwy 14 Lyle,  Wa usa 98635  (robert logan of red river and robert Logan of Cowlitz Farm)








Naults


   Date:          Mon, 03 Jul 2000 17:36:10 -0700 (PDT)


   From:          Fred Nault <rightguy5246@go.com>


 


 My name is Frederick Edmond Nault. My father was Edmond Nault. His father was Alexandre Mault. His father was Andre Nault, the son of Amabel and Josepha Lagimodiere. I was never told much about my background and am trying to put together a family tree. I don't know how much information you might have, but I would really appreciate any help you can give. I am 57 years old and new to the internet, but I am finding it very fascinating. My internet address is � HYPERLINK "mailto:rightguy5246@go.com " ��rightguy5246@go.com �


   Thanks again for any help you can give.   


Fred Nault       


 P.S. I live in Langley, BC
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An email note brought me to the following webpage.  I asked permission to cite it as a clearer way to display family trees.





Hi,


Just to let you know that Josephte Frobisher was the wife of Pierre Guillaume Sayer   See my web site at  


<http://www.interlinx.qc.ca/~wjones/>





Ancestors of Josephte Frobisher 





Generation No. 1





1. Josephte Frobisher 1,2, born 1807; died 1876 in Baie St. Paul, Manitoba 3.  She was the daughter of 2.


    Alexander Frobisher and 3. Marguerite.  She married (1) Pierre Guillaume"William" Sayer 4 March 02, 1835 in Grantown - St Francois Xavier, Manitoba 5,6,7,8.  He was born 1795, and died 9.  He was the son of John Sayer and Obemau-unoqua. 





    Notes for Josephte Frobisher: 


 In the Canadian Dictionary of Biography, she is listed as , Josette, the eldest daughter of the fur trader Alexander Frobisher. 





According to the St. Francois Xavier Roman Catholic Church records ... She was baptized and married the same day; March 2, 1835 at St Francois Xavier at the age of 28 years old and thus was born in 1807. However, her script application # 1640 of 1876 says that she was born in 1795. 





The baptismal record reads as follows, B 62 Josephté Frobisher : Le deux mars mil huit cent trente cinq, Nous,     Prêtre soussigné, avons baptisé Josephté âgée d'environs vingt huit ans, fille de Alexandre Frobisher et de Marguerite de la tribu des Cris. Marraine : Magdeleine Ross qui ne signe. C.E. Poiré, prêtre missionnaire. 


      


Notes for Pierre Guillaume"William" Sayer: 


According to the St. Francois Xavier Catholic Church marriage record, M 15 page 21: Guillaume Sayer, son of John Sayer and an Ojibway woman named Marguerite married Josephte Frobisher, age 28 years, daughter of Alexander Frobisher and Marguerite a Cree woman on March 2nd, 1835. 





The record reads as follows, M 15 Guillaume Serre et Josephté : Le deux mars mil huit cent trente cinq, Nous, Prêtre sûr la publication d'un ban de mariage faite au prône des messes paroissiales de cette paroisse la dispense des deux autres bans ayant été accordée par sa Grandeur l'Evêque de Juliopolis entre Guillaume Serre, fils majeur de John Serre et de Marguerite de la tribu des Sauteux, de cette paroisse d'une part : et Josèphté Frobisher, fille majeure de Alexandre Frobisher et de Marguerite de la tribu des Cris, aussi de cette mission d'autre part, ne s'étant préscrite au dit mariage aucun empêchement ni canonique ni civil, Nous, prêtre soussigné, leur avons donné la bénédiction nuptiale et reçu leur mutuel consentement de mariage en présence de Pierre Boyer et de Alexis McKay 


    qui ne signent. C.E. Poiré, prêtre. 





According to the Hudson Bay Archives, William worked for the North West Company at Cumberland House from 1818 to 1821, the year of the union of the two companies. In 1828-1829 he worked for the Hudson Bay Company as a Bowsman at Fort Pelly in the Swan River District. He stayed on as a Steersman fram 1829-1832. In 1832, he was freed from his service in the Hudson Bay Company and moved to the Red River Settlement. 


      


Generation No. 2





2. Alexander Frobisher, born 1775.  He married 3. Marguerite. 


3. Marguerite, born 1775. 





Notes for Alexander Frobisher: 


    According to the book Genealogies of Red River Households, 1818-1870 ... Alexander is listed as being of European birth.  He was a fur trader. 





Notes for Marguerite: 


According to the book Genealogies of Red River Households, 1818-1870 ... Marguerite was born in 1778. The marriage record of her son Pierre Guillaume indicates that she was a native Cree woman. 


  


Child of Alexander Frobisher and Marguerite is: 


1       i.      Josephte Frobisher, born 1807; died 1876 in Baie St. Paul, Manitoba; married Pierre Guillaume"William" Sayer March 02, 1835 in Grantown - St Francois Xavier, Manitoba. 


  Endnotes





     1.  Charles Denney, Charles Denney Metis Geneological Collection, microfilm, Frobisher 197,000. 


    2.  St. Francois Xavier Roman Catholic Church Registers, M 15, page 21. 


    3.  Charles Denney, Charles Denney Metis Geneological Collection, microfilm, Frobisher 197,000. 


    4.  St. Francois Xavier Roman Catholic Church Registers, M 15, page 21. 


    5.  Dictionary of Canadian Biography,  (University of Toronto Press), 776. 


    6.  Charles Denney, Charles Denney Metis Geneological Collection, microfilm, Frobisher 197,000. 


    7.  compiled by Paul J. Lareau & Fr. Julien Hamelin, Manitoba Marriages,  (Vol. 1, Le Centre de Genealogie S. C., Ottawa), # 6738. 


    8.  St. Francois Xavier Roman Catholic Church Registers, vol 1, p. 11; M 15 page 21. 


    9.  Dictionary of Canadian Biography,  (University of Toronto Press). 





I also give praise to Wayne Jones for his careful citations, both in his email and on his page.  I have received too many emails from individuals who have done all their research on the Web.  That is a very good way to get very confused.  The  EDITOR





Query into the McKay family of Berens River.





The Editor recently had a query about the Berens River McKay family.  The beginning information  given was:





"[Living descendant], son of Charles McKay and Lillian Moar [daughter of Fred and Charlotte], Son of James McKay and Kate Goosehead, son of Angus McKay and Virginia Roulette. Does this fit with information you have, and is anything more known about the family?"





Sources in Winnipeg forwarded the query to Raymond Shirritt-Beaumont, noting "He has that sort of info at his fingertips if anyone does."  His e-mail:  rbeaum@frontiersd.mb.ca 





Subject:         Re: [Fwd: McKays from Berens River.]


From:       "Raymond Shirritt-Beaumont" <RAYMOND@frontiersd.mb.ca>





Yes, I am familiar with the McKay Family of Berens River. Some years ago, I copied down information from the Roman Catholic records at Berens River on particular families. Last year the church burned down there, but I don't know if the records were destroyed or not. The R.C. Church record had a section where the information on the family was summarized. This is what was recorded on the McKays. 





James Joseph McKay, son of Angus McKay and Virginia Roulette, married Kate Goosehead. Children: George, born ?, married 2 August 1922 to Marie Louse Pelletier; Mary, born ?, married ? Isaiah Boulanger; Virginia, born ?, married 21 September 1925 to Tom Boulanger; Kate Jane, born 18 July 1912, married 3 August 1926 to Reginald Leach; Hilda Jane, born 20 April 1914, died 12 March 1931; Patricia, born 26 February 1916, died 2 May 1929; Marie Rose, born 7 February 1918, died 10 October 1918; Tachereau, born 13 August 1919, married 10 July 1941 Mildred Semple, daughter of John James Semple and Margaret Boucher; Charlie, born 11 June 1922, married (1) 4 July 1947 at Red Lake Pauline Negrick or Negrich and (2) 27 October 1951 to Lillian Moar; James Joseph Jr, born 1 April 1910, married (1) 22 April 1931 Bethsay Wiskiss and (2) 4 September 1947 Barbara Nanacowap.





In the Berens River Methodist Records, Marriages 1884-1907, I found the following: 


No. 62, James Joseph McKay, aged 23, of Berens River, born White Horse Plains, bachelor, fisherman, son of Angus McKay and Virginia McKay, married Catherine Goosehead, aged 20, of Berens River, born in Berens River, spinster, daughter of Samuel Goosehead and Mary Goosehead, married 10 August 1904 at Berens River. Witnesses: Frederic A. Disbrowe and Jacob Berens, both of Berens River. The groom was Roman Catholic, the bride Methodist. They were married by Rev. Thomas Neville after banns. 





In the Berens River Methodist Register, 1920 -1950s, there is the following record:





No. 59, Esaias A. Boulanger, aged 25, bachelor, of Berens River, born Oxford House, Methodist, son of John Boulanger and Mary Spence, and Daisy May McKay, aged 18, of Berens River, born in Berens River, Roman Catholic, were married after banns on 13 August 1924 by Jno. W. Niddrie. At Berens River. Witnesses were: C. D. Street, Mrs. George McKay. [Street was the local school teacher. Daisy May must have been born in 1906.]





I know this McKay family was at one time strong Roman Catholics. Since the Roman Catholic Church was established in Berens River after 1900, I suspect the first children of James Joseph McKay and Catherine Goosehead were baptised by a travelling priest, possibly from St. Boniface. You would have to check the diocese on that. Daisy May appears to have been the only one who married out of the Roman Catholic Church, except her parents, who may have been married by the Methodist clergyman because there was no Roman Catholic priest available at the time. I found no evidence that any of their first children were baptised in the Methodist Church. 





Raymond


Note On Using Sources


My thanks to Raymond for his excellent examples of how to pass information on to family queries.   The next article is an illustration of what happens when an information exchange goes less well.





Correspondence:


The Centre for Rupert's Land Research Centre forwarded a letter from Virginia R. Oman-Fetterly concerning a query she had in February.  I include the letter, Raymond Shirritt-Beaumont's reply, and his file on the Omans as examples of how to query and respond to queries, including documentation. 





February 19, 2001





My family ancestry evolved from the Churchill and York Factory areas of Northern Manitoba.  The Oman name has been in the Churchill area since the early years of the fur trade.  My father Gordon Taylor Oman (b 1928) has set his roots in Churchill and so has his father Arthur Oman (b 1895), and his father James Oman (b 1855).  My great great grandfather was William Oman born about 1803 and died 1867.  It was William Oman's father who returned to Orkney after retiring from the Hudson's Bay Company.  


I have discovered two other Williams who worked for the HBC and returned to Orkney in the early 1800s.  One William Oman Sr. returned to Sank[d]wick, Orkney in 1804 and William Oman Jr. returned to Stromney[Stromness], Orkney in 1811.  I am uncertain as to which of these men my family descended from.


My mothers maiden name was Nora Rowina Spence (b 1934) and her parents were James Spence (b 1900) and Nellie Gray (b 1904).  They were born in York Factory and moved to Churchill in Yorks declining years.  My great grandfather was George Spence (abt 1871), he married MaryAnn Wilson (abt 1875).  George Spence's parents were John and Martha Spence.


I will probably be researching these lines for many years but I thought I would contact you to see if you came across any information on the families who settled in these area of Northern Manitoba.





Your Sincerely,


Virginia R. Oman-Fetterly


PO Box 2158


The Pas, Manitoba


R9A 1L8


(204) 623-4746.


 


TO:		Virginia R. Oman-Fetterly


		PO Box 2158, 


The Pas MB  R9A 1L8





FROM:	Raymond Shirritt-Beaumont


		Researcher/Writer


		Frontier School Division No. 48


		1402 Notre Dame Avenue





DATE:	10 July 2001





RE:		Oman Family Research








Today I received a query from Molly Clarke who had received a query from Donna Sutherland, Centre for Rupert’s Land Studies, concerning your ancestry. I have a file on the Omans I completed for a descendant in British Columbia of the Gibeault Family. I added the baptism of your Grandfather Arthur Oman this afternoon and am enclosing it along with the other data on the Omans. 





If you have any other queries on your ancestors from the York Factory or Churchill regions, I do have copies of the Anglican records for both places. I have a feeling you might be able to determine which William Oman you are descended from by reference to the engagement lists of the HBC. In all likelihood, William Oman (1803-1867) was son of a William Oman stationed at Churchill or possibly York Factory. I would check to see which William Oman was located at either of these places. Also, it is useful to check the accounts of each man. I was able to determine that John Turner of The Pas was a son of Captain John Turner of the HBC because he sent home money to his father in England to be invested on his behalf. It may be that William Oman Jr. had some monetary connections with a retired father that would prove the connection between them. 





Best of luck in your research!





Raymond Beaumont's Oman file.





William Oman (1801 or 1802 – 1867) lived at Churchill and was married to Nancy Budge. His ten known children were in the order of their birth, Nancy (Baptiste Tourangeau), born circa 1835; Margaret (William Gibeault), b. c. 1835; Catherine (Dumb Boy), born 1836; Annie, b. 1838; Isabella (John Smith?), born c. 1839-1843; William, b. 1844; Maria (George McPherson), b. 1848; George, b. 1850; Jane, b. 1852, and James, b. 1855.





Eight of these ten children were baptised in 1856 at Churchill. Nancy, the eldest, was away from home by this time, probably in the Athabasca country. Isabella was also missing. Apparently, she went to Great Britain prior to 1856. Since she was born sometime between 1839 and 1843, she must have been young when she left. 





1822





On 28 August, Mary, daughter of Wm. Oman, of the Orkneys, baptised by John West. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)This entry is on St. John’s College and College School stationary, printed sometime between 1900 and 1909. Therefore, it has been copied from the original, which was probably a loose piece of paper compiled by John West, the first Anglican missionary at Red River, who performed baptisms of H.B.Co. personnel when he was passing through York Factory in 1822.





Mary’s baptism took place at York Factory on August 28, along with Joseph, son of George Charles and a half-breed woman, and Jane, daughter of John Robertson, clerk, and a half-breed woman. Mary was probably a young woman by this time and possibly unmarried, although she might have been the mother of either Joseph Charles or Jane Robertson. Perhaps John West’s journal would provide some clues, if such exists. The York Factory Journal might be helpful as well.





1823





Baptised at Churchill, 3 August 1823, William, son of Wm. Oman & Southern Indian woman. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)This entry is on St. John’s College and College School stationary, printed sometime between 1900 and 1909. Therefore, it has been copied from the original, which was probably a loose piece of paper compiled by John West, the first Anglican missionary at Red River. This entry does not state that it was John West who performed the baptism, but it is likely that he did so. What is significant is that John Oman’s mother was a “Southern” Indian woman, making her Cree. The “Northern” Indians were Dene.





William appears to be the only baptism at Churchill on 3 August 1823. Baptisms occurred July 10 and August 24 at York Factory, so John West must have made a quick trip to Churchill, where he baptised William, who would have been about 22 years of age at this time.





1830





Betsey Omand, wife of Jno. Colfield Sinclair, daughter of James Omand and Mary Omand, born 1830 (NAC, Half-Breed Scrip Applications, v. 1508, Index 1886-1887 and Half-Breed Claims up to 1898) This family may be descended from a relative of William and Mary Oman. Could James Omand be a brother, and son of an earlier William Oman from the Orkneys?





1835





Nancy Omand, of St. Albert, born 1835 at Churchill (Hudson Bay) daughter of William Omand (Halfbreed) and Nancy Budds (Half Breed) married at Athabasca to Baptiste Tourangeau. (NAC, RG15, DII, 8.b, mf. C-14942, Department of the Interior, Dominion Land Administration, Dominion Lands Branch, Lands Records, Half Breeds and Original White Settlers, Applications of 1885 made by North West Half Breeds, 1885 (Volumes 1325-1332) This is the record that provides the maiden name of William Omand’s wife. Nancy Omand was definitely the eldest daughter of William Omand and Nancy Budge.





1838





The following census of Crees in Churchill indicates two families, one of them headed by Budge.





Crees at Churchill in 1838�
Relationships/connections�
wives�
sons�
daus�
followers�
total�
�
1. Budge�
Head of family�
1�
1�
3�
�
�
�
2. Mesquan.ah.kees.cum�
Son of #1�
1�
�
1�
�
�
�
3. O.weys.kees.cum.ick�
Son of #1�
�
�
�
�
�
�
4. Jack�
Brother of #1�
1�
�
2�
�
�
�
5. Ne.che.mo.ah.pee?�
Son of #4�
1�
1�
�
�
�
�
6. Hoog.e.mow.sees�
Son of #4�
�
�
�
�
�
�
7. Ques.ky.ca.po�
Brother in law of #2�
�
�
�
1�
�
�
8. Pai.pa.a.quon?�
Brother-in-law of #5�
�
�
�
�
�
�
9. Mis.in.ah.pis.cum�
head of a family�
1�
1�
2�
�
�
�
10. Wa.ke.coot�
Brother of #9�
�
�
�
�
�
�
11. Ke.se.cow.ca.po�
Brother of #9�
1�
1�
�
1�
�
�
12. Sa.kash.e.mo.e.thin.ue�
Brother of #9�
�
�
�
�
�
�
13. Na.paish�
Brother of #9�
�
�
�
1�
�
�
13          Total�
�
6�
4�
8�
3�
34�
�
(B.239/z10, fo. 32d, York Factory, Miscellaneous Items, 1838, 1M903) It appears that there were only two Cree families at Churchill in 1838. I suspect that Nancy Budge, the wife of William Oman was related to the one family, which was probably descended from an H. B. Co. servant named Budge.








1852





Marriage contract of William Gibeault and Margaret Oman, 31 Jan 1852. (PAM, HBCA, B.42/z/1, fo. 42, Churchill, Miscellaneious, 1797-1870) This would be a legal contract between the parties that would legitimize their marriage. They usually promised that they would be married by a clergyman at the first possible opportunity, which was 1856, when William Mason visited Churchill.





1856





No. 237, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, Nancy Oman of Churchill, Adult, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)This is Nancy Budge, the wife of William Oman.





No. 238, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, William, son of William and Nancy Oman of Churchill, aged 12 years, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill) He must have died prior to 1867, when his father died. Perhaps the Churchill Post Journal will have a record of his death.





No. 239, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, George, son of William and Nancy Oman of Churchill, aged 6 years, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





No. 240, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, James, son of William and Nancy Oman of Churchill, aged 1 year, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





No. 241, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, Catherine, daughter of William and Nancy Oman of Churchill, 20 years, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





No. 242, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, Anne, daughter of William and Nancy Oman of Churchill, 18 years, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





No. 243, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, Maria, daughter of William and Nancy Oman of Churchill, aged 8 years, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





No. 244, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, Jane, daughter of William and Nancy Oman of Churchill, aged 4 years, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





No. 245 is a spoiled entry, incorrectly recorded.





No. 246, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, Margaret, daughter of William and Nancy Oman of Churchill, Adult, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill) Margaret Oman was married to William Gibeault.





No. 247, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, William, son of William and Margaret Jibeault Churchill, 4 years, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





No. 248, at Churchill, 6 April 1856, John, son of William and Margaret Jibeault Churchill, 2 years, baptised by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





At Churchill Fort, 6 April 1856, William Oman, Interpreter, and Nancy [Budge] married by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





At Churchill Fort, 6 April 1856, William Jibeault, Labourer, and Margaret [Oman] married by Wm. Mason. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (b) Baptisms, Marriages, Deaths 1846-1858, including Fort Churchill)





1860





No. 457, 15 July 1860, Sandy, son of William and Margaret Jibeault, Churchill, 3 years, baptised by Joseph P. Gardiner. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (c) Baptisms, Marriages, 1858-1864)





No. 458, 15 July 1860, Margaret, daughter of William and Margaret Jibeault, Churchill, 13 years, baptised by Joseph P. Gardiner. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (c) Baptisms, Marriages, 1858-1864)





1861





No. 516, 1 August 1861, Nancy, daughter of William and Margaret Jibeault, Churchill, 7 weeks, baptised by Joseph P. Gardiner. (MS 217, Diocese of Keewatin, VIII York Factory – (c) Baptisms, Marriages, 1858-1864)





1866


No. 13, At Churchill, 9 August 1866, George Macpherson, full age, batchelor, blacksmith, of Churchill, son of Henry Macpherson, sailor, married Maria Oman, full age [18 years], spinster, of Churchill, daughter of William Oman, labourer, (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934) She later died, and he remarried.





1867





No. 1, On 29 August 1867, William Oman, aged 64 years, died of disease of the lungs at Churchill. Buried by Chas. Jno. Griffin. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Deaths, 1860-1934)





1868





When William Oman died, the following children were listed as beneficiaries of his estate.


1st. Eldest Nancy Tourangeau – married to Baptiste Tourangeua, place of residence now unknown.


3rd, Catherine, married legally to a “dumb Boy” formerly of York Factory, name here unknown.


2nd Margaret, married legally to William Gibeault, Engaged Servant at Churchill.


4. Annie, Spinster – a pensioner & resides at Churchill.


5th. Isabella. Left Churchill when quite young & went home to England in charge of John Smith, formerly a Blksmith at YF agreeably to instructions or the wishes of Mr. Robert Harding formerly a Clerk in the Hudson’s Bay Cos. Service & in charge of Churchill – no account of or from this same Isabella has ever been known to any of the relations here.


6th Maria, Married to George McPherson an Engaged Servant at Churchill.


7th. George, An apprentice Laborer at Churchill.


8th. Jane, Spinster, a pensioner & residing at Churchill.


9th. James, A youth a Pensioner & residing at Churchill. 





Amt. Due Wm. Oman, 31 May 1868, £157.5.5. ((See PAM, HBCA, B.42/z/1, fo. 49d, Churchill, Miscellaneous, 1797-1870.





1871





23 April 1871, Annabella, Illegitimate daughter of Ann Oman, 9 years? Churchill, baptised by W. W. Kirkby. C.M.S. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, 1860-1934, Entry 71)





23 April 1871, Patrick, Illegitimate son of Ann Oman, 6 years Churchill, baptised by W. W. Kirkby. C.M.S. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, 1860-1934, Entry 72)





1873





No. 16, At Churchill, 16 July 1873, George Oman, full age, batchelor, labourer, of Churchill, son of William Oman, Labourer, married Nancy Grey, full age, spinster, of Churchill, daughter of Samuel Grey, Fisherman, (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)





1875





No. 17, At Churchill, 25 April 1874, George Macpherson, full age, widower, blacksmith, of Churchill, son of Henry Macpherson, sailor, married Mary Norman, full age, widow, of Churchill, daughter of Samuel Grey, Fisherman, (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)





1878





No. 18, At Churchill, 12 May 1878, James Oman, aged 21, batchelor, servant, of Churchill, son of William Oman, labourer, married Mary Ann Groat, aged 18, spinster, of Churchill, daughter of John Groat, Labourer, (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)





1887?





No. 20, At Churchill, 4 Sept 1887?, James Oman, full, widower, servant, of Churchill, son of William Oman, labourer, married Eliza? Ann Groat, aged 15?, spinster, of Churchill, daughter of John Groat, Labourer, (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)





1891





No. 19, On 25 June 1891, Nancy Oman died of Puerperal Fever, no age given, of Churchill, buried by J. Lofthouse. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Deaths, 1860-1934)Was this Nancy Budge?





1895





No. 265, Baptised 24 February 1895, Arthur, son of James and Eliza Oman, born 24 January 24 at Churchill by J. Lofthouse. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Deaths, 1860-1934)





1905





No. 42, At Churchill, 28 Aug 1905, Alex: Oman, bachelor, H. B. Servant, of Churchill, son of George Oman, H. B. Servant, married Alice Oman, spinster, of Churchill, daughter of James Oman, H. B. Servant. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)





1909





No. 57, At Churchill, 26 April 1909, Charles Oman, aged +26, bachelor, trapper, of Churchill, son of James Oman, Trapper, married Sarah Hart, Full age, spinster, of Churchill, daughter of Joseph Hart, Servant. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)





1911





No. 59, At Churchill, 2 April 1911, Albert Oman, aged 25, bachelor, labourer, of Churchill, son of George Oman, Interpreter, married Mary Ann Chanther, aged 19, spinster, of Churchill, daughter of William Chanther, deceased. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)





1914





No. 74, At Churchill, 25 Sept. 1914, Arthur Oman, Full, bachelor, labourer, of Churchill, son of James Oman, H. B. Pens.[ioner], married Catherine Yoosie, Full age, spinster, Indian, of Churchill, daughter of Yoosie, deceased. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)





1921





No. 84, At Churchill, 29 August 1921, Stewart B. Hart, aged 22, bachelor, Servant of H. B. Co., of Churchill, son of Joseph Hart, Servant of H. B. Co., married Effie Oman, aged 16, spinster, Domestic, of Churchill, daughter of Alexander Oman, Servant of H. B. Co.. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)





1927





No. 96, At Churchill, 30 July 1927, David Oman, aged 25, bachelor, Hunter, of Churchill, son of George Oman, H. B. Co. Interpreter, married Mary Anderson, aged 18, spinster, of Churchill, daughter of John Anderson, Hunter. (Diocese of Rupert’s Land, Churchill, St. Paul’s Mission, Marriages, 1860-1934)


�

















I told you to get the book: Revisiting the Bray family





I received a message from a distant cousin several months ago, looking for information on the Bray family of Medicine Hat, Alberta.  Long term readers of this newsletter will know that the Bray family, as a branch of the McKay family in western Canada, has been well documented in the McCloy and Denney collections, as well as in archival collections in the Glenbow and Medicine Hat Museums.





This cousin wrote that he had been "banging his head" looking for information, and that my posting was the first that matched his information.  He continued: "My grandfather is the son of Caroline Clara Bray (daughter of J.H.G. BRAY & Jemima BRAY (nee McKay). We are looking for more information on their children... "





I answered that:


"There is a very good source on the family in the form of a family history book, titled "The Histories of: Jemima (McKay) Bray, John Henry Gresham Bray and their descendants"  that is apparently available in some libraries."  And that "There is also full information on the family, as a branch of the John Mckay family, available in both the Denny collection, and probably more comprehensively in the McCloy collection, in the Glenbow Museum Archives in Calgary."  I ended by offering to copy some of the family information out of my copy of the family book that related to his branch.





He responded that any information I could send him would be wonderful, as he lived in BC, and was out of touch with the family in Medicine Hat, and that he had found interesting information on Jemima McKay and John McKay on-line.





I identified myself as "also a descendant of Jemima and JHG, through their youngest daughter who had a family. My grandmother was Jemima Henrietta Gertrude Bray, who married George Halstead. And


I am the editor of Canada Tree.  Have you seen my newsletter?  I would be interested in any sources of family stories you have."


        


"Here, briefly, is what the book has on the descendants of Caroline Clara Bray.


She was born March 10, 1887 in Pincher Creek, AB, died 16 April 1964, in Medicine Hat, AB. She and William Henry (Billy) Crockford [1875 to 10 June 1995] were married on 13 May 1903.


       Their children were:


James Henry (Jim) Crockford, born 30 January 1904, in Medicine Hat, died 28 December 1912 in Medicine Hat.   


Arthur Raymond (Ray) Crockford, born 31 March 1906, died 5 September 1952.  He was married to Mary Borkett [who died 20 Jan 1988] on 23 July 1937.  The book says that Arthur [Ray] had no descendants, but a stepson.


Cecile Emma Norine (Cicely) Crockford, born 2 Febraury 1908 at Finn's Lake, AB, Died 4 October, 1964.  She was married to George John Priest on 25 June 1932.


           Children: Wiliam (Billie) George Priest - born in Medicine Hat


                         Shirley Mae, born in Trail BC 11 March 1937


                       William Leonard Crockford, born 28 Oct. 1910. died 29 June 1972 in Medicine Hat, married Annis Eden 25 Feb 1961.  Leonard had two step sons, according to the book.


         John Louis (Jack) Crockford Born 10 January 1912 in Finns Lake, AB.  Married Anita Ockert. 


           Children:  Jacqueline Millicent Crockford - born 2 Aug 1935 in Medicine Hat, AB


                           Carol Ann Crockford, born 21 July 1938 in Medicne Hat, AB


                           William John (Bill) Crockford [no birth day in book] married Ruby [no 


                           last name given] [divorced] 


                           [Daughter who died at birth - twin to William John]


        


That's the first half of them.  Maybe you should give me your descent line, so I make sure to include it."


        


His response to that half line of his branch was very enthusiastic.





"HI Margaret,


    I feel like it is Christmas!! Okay my line is.with the Crockfords...You need to add  Rodney Bray Crockford (son of Caroline Clara Bray and Henry (William) Crockford).  He was born on May 9,1919 in Medicine Hat where he is still living.  (His brothers do include James Henry, Arthur Raymond & William Leonard and sister Cecile).  Rodney (Rod) is my grandfather so if I am doing my math right that would make you my...cousin?  Sounds to me like we can do more with all of these lines.  I have not seen your newsletter but would love too.  We have a family tree that we will be getting tomorrow so maybe we can fill in some blanks.  We also have a story on Jemima & John Henry that we could send to you...It's from a book and it's all about his life and hers and even talks of their kids.


Can't tell u how excited I am!"





I then advised him again: 


"Okay - how about we do this.  Go to my web page and find out what is there.  I'm reasonably sure that our grandparents' generation is there. You should really get the book, or see if it is available close to you.  The book takes about 55 pages to go through all the descendants - except of course, those married and born since 1992.My web page � HYPERLINK http://users.rttinc.com/~canadatreeYou ��http://users.rttinc.com/~canadatree   


�You could also talk to Adele Johnson at � HYPERLINK mailto:adelej@telusplanet.net ��adelej@telusplanet.net�  By the way, that book you mentioned about Jemima and JHG - was it about the NWMP?  "Men in Scarlet"?"





He replied: "Thanks for your time and information...Apparantly my mom has a copy of the book so I will go through it tomorrow and do my best to update it...I am not sure what the book title was cause we just have one chapter of it...It's Chapter 9 & its called SGT.-MAJOR J.H.G. BRAY, THE FORGOTTEN HORSEMAN..You have probably already read it and if not it is quite interesting..Thanks again."





I confirmed that we were talking about the same book about the NWMP, and signed off, saying I had to work.





His wife responded this time.:


"Thanks again Margaret for all your help...I am Jason's wife, Leanna and I am doing my best to help him with his search...My mom put together a family tree for our side of the family and includes sooo much information on all the descendants and then some...There is where they live, what they do , who they married..and lots of documentation and Jason is looking to do the same...For example, knowing who your family is and pictures and all that stuff..It will be a long project but one we are enjoying! 


Jay's grandfather Rod has a copy of that book and we are hoping to get it soon..Was just wondering though (sorry to bug you AGAIN) is there anyway we can get a copy of it??  We have found quite a bit more information including a story on a Ron Bray...no idea where he fits in but we will figure it out..anyway if you know where we could get a copy we would appreciate it..We have mailed Adelaide but haven't heard anything yet.


Take Care and thanks for your time


Leanna Fisher"





I answered, again: "You really need to see the family history book.  So much has been done.  It was compiled by Donna Thane, a cousin who lives in Medicine Hat.  I bet the Medicine Hat museum would have contact info and maybe even copies for sale.


My Mom had contact info for everyone, but she died in February, so I don't have access.."





The lengthly conversation ended with her thanking me and saying: "Will phone the Museum.  Rod had an article on John Bray that we just posted on the website.  <www.geocities.com/brayinfo/index.html>   


Pretty interesting … you probably have seen it though! [Laugh]


Take care.


Leanna"








WEBPAGES:


A friend and fellow researcher sent me the following link to a webpage on Willow Bunch, Saskatchewan.





� HYPERLINK http://mypage.direct.ca/r/rominator/ ��http://mypage.direct.ca/r/rominator/�





The following excerpts give some idea of what the site contains.


"Welcome to The Willow Tree








This site contains my husband's family tree and the genealogy of many of the Metis families of Willow Bunch, Saskatchewan.





Included are families from the Red River Settlement, Wood Mountain, Qu'Appelle and Pembina. I hope you enjoy your visit.





Subsections:


                                          SURNAMES


                                           PICTURES


                                            STORIES


                                         FAMILY TREE


                                           SOURCES


Some Favorite Links





  Gen Web - lots of searchable databases





  U.H.M.A - United Heritage Metis Association Homepage





  Canadian National Archives - search the Archives for surnames





  The Other Metis (Metis Links) - links to genealogy, history and culture





  Metis Bison Hunters - history and culture of the Metis People





  The Metis. . .one of Canada's Aboriginal People! - history and culture of the Metis People





  The Northwest Resistance - as told by two participants





  The Metis National Council
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Founding Families of Willow Bunch





Transcribed from the book "La Montagne de Bois 1870-1920" by Rev. Clovis Rondeau, P.M.E.





  It would be difficult to register in history the name of the Metis families who came to settle at la Montagne de Bois because those newcomers were mostly nomads.  Hunting being a means of making a living, the Metis camped here and there according to the prescence of buffalos in the different regions.  But the families from which descendants can still be found are:  Pierre and Antoine Ouellette;  Alexandre, Auguste, Modeste and Thomas McGillis;  Ambroise, Zacharie and Jean Chartrand;  Antoine and Francois Caplette;  Antoine and Alexandre Gosselin;  Narcisse Lacerte, Guillaume Klyne, Louis Larocque, J.-B. Faillant, Guillaume Morin, Joseph Morin, Louis Briere, Andre Gaudry and Alex Rivard.


  Unfortunately this list is not complete.  The parochial records are dated only from 1881 and till that date, baptisms, marriages and burials were recorded at Qu'Appelle's mission.  Three years after the coming of the first families, the region numbered 175 habitations.  To the names pre-listed can be added the following:  Dumont, Dauphinais, Delorme, St-Germain, St-Denis, Roy, Bottineau, Lafournaise, Piche, Short, Boxeur, Pelletier, Berard, Rainville, Hamelin, Champagne, Poitras, Beston, etc. . . .These were among the pioneers or were families who stayed in the region for quite a long time. "





Gaudry Research


This webpage also mentions a couple from the Gaudry research project.  Elizabeth McGillis and Augustin Guadry are mentioned among their siblings but not as a couple.  This points us to Montana for their marriage records.
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